
 

 

Assistant Director, Governance and 
 

Monitoring 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 
Governance and Democratic Services 
 

Civic Centre 3 
 

High Street 
 

Huddersfield 
 

HD1 2TG 
 

Tel: 01484 221000  
 

Direct Line: 01484 221000 
 

Fax: 01484 221707 
 

Please ask for: Liz Singleton 
 

Email: liz.singleton@kirklees.gov.uk 
 

Date: 20 June 2016 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Dear Member 
 

Kirklees Schools Forum 
 

The Kirklees Schools Forum will meet in the Tolson Museum, Ravensknowle 
Park, Wakefield Road, Huddersfield, HD5 8DJ at 10.00 am on Friday 24 
June 2016. 
 
The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details. 
 
 

 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 

Assistant Director of Legal, Governance and Monitoring 
 
 
Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

The Kirklees Schools Forum members are:- 
 

Forum members are:  
School members: 
 
Julie Helm, Nursery Schools 
Simon Sloan, Primary Schools  
Jackie Wood,Primary Schools  
Lynn Hill, Primary Schools  
Diana Wilson, Primary Schools  
Marcus Newby, Primary Schools   
Nicky Rogers , Special Schools  
Loz Wilson, Secondary Schools 
Ian Ellam, Secondary Schools  
Gary Johnson, Middle Schools  
Martin Ridge, Pupil Referral Units 
Mike Cook, Academies (Vice chair) 
Michelle Lee, Academies (Chair) 
 

Non-school members 
Sarah Ellis, Pre-school Learning Alliance 
Anton McGrath, Post 16  
Gillian Collins, ATL  
Hazel Danson, NUT 
Paula Wescott, NAS/UWT  
 

Supporting LA officers in attendance: 
Angela Farmer, Senior Finance Officer 
David Gearing, Financial Delegation Manager & Minute Clerk  
Liz Singleton, Deputy Assistant Director: Learning and Skills 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached 

 

 
 
 
  Pages 

 
 

1:   Apologies for absence 
 

To receive. 
 
 

 
 

 

 

2:   Minutes of the Forum meeting held on 11th March 2016 
 

To receive and note. 
 
 

 
 

1 - 6 

 

3:   Matters arising from the  11th March 2016 meeting 
 

To discuss. 
 
 

 
 

 

 

4:   Consultation update 
 

National Funding Consultation 
 
Contact: David Gearing 
 
 

 
 

 

 

5:   DSG 2015/16 budget rollover proposals 
 

Financial Outturn 
 
Contact: David Gearing and Angela Farmer 
 
 

 
 

7 - 12 



 

 

 

6:   Excess balance sub-group update 
 

Contact: Angela Farmer 
 
 

 
 

 

 

7:   Any other business 
 

To consider. 
 
 

 
 

 

 

8:   Meeting schedule 2016/17 
 

To note the following dates; 
 

Friday 21st October 2016 
Friday 2nd December 2016 
Friday 10th March 2017 
Friday 16th March 2017 
 
All meetings are at Tolson Museum. Times for meetings may vary 
and will be published on the Kirklees Council website 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

             

        st     

         

Present:   
 Nursery School Heads (1) 

Marcus Newby, Diana Wilson  Primary School Heads (6) 

Gary Johnson Middle School Heads (1) 

Jennifer Templar High School Heads (2) 

 Special School Heads (1) 

Mike Cook [Chair], Ann McCall Academy Heads (2) 

Martin Ridge Pupil Referral Units (1) 

 Kirklees Governors (1) 

Gillian Collins (ATL), Hazel Danson (NUT), Sarah Ellis (Pre-school Learning 
Alliance), Paula Westcott (NASUWT)    

Non-school members (5) 

Gill Ellis (Assistant Director for Learning and Skills) 
David Gearing (Financial Delegation Manager); [Minute Clerk] 
Liz Singleton (Deputy Assistant Director, Learning)  

Officers in Support 

 Observers 

 
1. Apologies for absence 
 
Apologies had been received from Ian Ellam (High School Heads), Angela Farmer (Officer in 
support), Lynn Hill (Primary School Heads), Michelle Lee (Academy Heads) and Loz Wilson 
(High School Heads). Jennifer Templar attended in substitution for Ian/Loz and Ann McCall in 
substitution for Michelle. Mike Cook chaired the meeting in Michelle’s absence.    
 
2. Minutes of the Schools Forum Public meeting held on 11th December 
 
The minutes were agreed to be a true record of the meeting. 
 
3. Matters arising from the Schools Forum meeting 11th December 
 
No matters were raised. 
 
4. Report on 2016-17 Budget Share allocations 
 

 IDACI factor changes 
 
At the last meeting held on 11th December it was reported that the new school funding data 
set supplied by the Education Funding Agency (EFA) contained a significantly different 
pattern of IDACI (Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index) scores. A separate meeting of 
Schools Forum representatives was held on 15th January to discuss how to adjust funding 
allocations in response to the changes in the new IDACI data set. The first stage of that 
process showed the difference in the IDACI allocation to 2015-16 funding if the same factor 
values were applied. The schools with the biggest initial drop in IDACI funding were serving 
areas of Dewsbury and Batley. In particular, post codes beginning WF12, WF13 and WF17 
appeared to have experienced the largest downward shift in the assessed level of 
deprivation. The meeting on 15th January considered options for how to reapply the £5.1m 
initially displaced within the IDACI factor budget. These options ranged from a reallocation of 
the full amount to the Age-Weighted Pupil Unit factors through to boosting the current IDACI 
factor values to spend the £5.1m – unfortunately neither of these two approaches had much 
effect upon the schools that were most disadvantaged by the update of the IDACI data set. 
 

THE KIRKLEES SCHOOLS FORUM  
meeting held on Friday 11

th
 March 2016  

10:00am at the Tolson Museum 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 

 

A third approach was considered. The new local IDACI assessment had, in general terms, 
moved children down by one IDACI band. An option was prepared which moved the IDACI 
factor banding values down by one band to match the movement in the data set. This did 
mitigate the biggest reductions in a significant way although the difference in IDACI 
assessment for these schools is so substantial that there is no practical way to maintain 
anywhere near the previous levels of support funding received. This approach was adopted 
and formed part of the submission to the EFA of the 2016-17 schools funding allocations for 
21st January. The movement in the factor band values is illustrated below. 
 

IDACI score IDACI Band Primary-age per pupil funding Secondary-age per pupil funding 

      

  2015-16 2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 

< 0.2 0 £0 £0 £0 £0 

0.2 to 0.25 1 £198.63 £436.98 £252.66 £341.09 

0.25 to 0.3 2 £436.98 £536.30 £341.09 £821.15 

0.3 to 0.4 3 £536.30 £794.52 £821.15 £884.31 

0.4 to 0.5 4 £794.52 £794.52 £884.31 £1,010.64 

0.5 to 0.6 5 £794.52 £794.52 £1,010.64 £1,010.64 

0.6 to 1.0 6 £794.52 No pupils £1,010.64 No pupils 

 
Those schools still adversely affected by the IDACI changes will be helped to some extent by 
an increase to the AWPU values (worth £2m in total) and the operation of the Minimum 
Funding Guarantee. 
 

 Funding 2016-17 
 
Summary-level breakdowns of the 2016-17 funding allocation to schools and academies 
were provided, one showing the overall differences in funding allocated on each factor in 
comparison to 2014-15 the other breaking those differences down between the primary and 
secondary sectors as well as detailing any differences in the value of the funding factors.  
 
Overall the funding allocation has increased by £3.82m as a result of having more children in 
schools and academies in the borough. Internal savings on some of the additional need 
factors meant that the amount allocated via Age-Weighted Pupil Units is £5.49m higher than 
the previous year. The main factors underlying the difference between these two figures are 
a movement of £490k out of the secondary IDACI allocation (see above), £970k mainly out of 
the primary low prior attainment factor (improved outcomes, assessment methodology 
change) and £202k from amalgamated school transitional support. The primary to secondary 
funding per pupil ratio for 2016-17 is 1 to 1:2755, very similar to the declared national 
average of 1 to 1.28. 
 
Aside from the IDACI factor value changes shown in the above table the AWPU values have 
increased in comparison to 2015-16 – Primary by £29.23 (+1.06%), KS3 by £60.89 (+1.55%) 
and KS4 by £75.16 (+1.55%). The secondary rates show a higher increase because of the 
transfer of £490k out of the secondary IDACI budget into secondary AWPUs.  
 
5. National Funding Formula arrangements – launch of consultation 
 
On Monday this week the Department for Education launched two consultations, one on the 
introduction of a national funding formula for mainstream schools and academies and one on 
future High Needs funding arrangements. [A third consultation on Early Years funding 
arrangements will be launched later in the year]. The response deadline for the two current 
consultations is Sunday 17th April. The focus for the major part of today’s business was to 

Page 2



 

 

work through the consultation document proposals and record Schools Forum’s response to 
each of the 39 questions asked (25 on the NFF proposals, 14 on the High Needs proposals). 
Officers agreed to submit the responses on behalf of Schools Forum. A draft version will be 
circulated amongst Forum members to give chance for comment / amendment before the on-
line response is submitted. A copy of the agreed responses will be circulated with the papers 
for the next agenda. 
 
Both consultations have two stages. This first stage is about establishing the principles and 
the framework structure for the proposed changes. The second stage, to be launched 
sometime during the Summer term, will release details about exactly how the revised funding 
methods will work. The main points under each consultation are listed below. 
 
The Schools National Funding Formula    
 

 The NFF will be introduced in 2017-18 in two stages 

 2017-18 and 2018-19 the NFF will determine the overall schools block allocation to 
each local authority 

 For these two years the LA in consultation with Schools Forum will determine how the 
total funding is distributed to schools / academies [‘Soft’ NFF] 

 From 2019-20 the NFF will apply at school-level with funding going direct to schools 
and academies via the national method [‘Hard’ NFF] 

 The proposed NFF factors more or less match the current framework of factors, but.. 

 New measures will be used in the Low Prior Attainment factor 

 EAL3 will be used for English as an Additional Language [Kirklees uses EAL1] 

 Funding for business rates, split site costs, PFI and exceptional premises will be 
funded at historic spending levels during the ‘soft’ years 

 Looked-after Children will cease to be a factor used – LAC will instead be funded via 
Pupil Premium Plus arrangements 

 The NFF will include a growth factor to acknowledge planned basic need growth 

 There will also be an area cost adjustment built in to acknowledge the higher costs of 
employment in certain parts of England. 

 Pupil Mobility and Post-16 funding will not be factors in the NFF [Kirklees don’t use] 

 An exercise will be carried out with LAs to re-baseline the three Dedicated Schools 
Grant funding blocks – Schools, High Needs and Early Years – to reflect current 
spending patterns rather than the initial EFA allocations to the three blocks 

 In future 100% of the Schools Block must be distributed to schools 

 Local authorities will be able to use previously accumulated DSG reserves 

 There is potential for local variation to deepen the permitted loss per pupil in the 
application of a minimum funding guarantee during the ‘soft’ phase. 

 Schools Forum retains its current role for 2017-18 and 2018-19 with a review planned 
from first principles of its role, functions and membership for 2019-20 onwards 

 De-delegation arrangements for maintained schools will be withdrawn from 2019-20 
but it is possible to trade the services instead 

 Further information, guidance and support to improve financial health and efficiency 

 Invest to Save fund will help schools secure savings 

 A new pupil-allocated Central Schools Block of funding will replace the current 
retained DSG and the retained duties elements of the current Education Services 
Grant 

 There will be an exercise conducted by the EFA to agree historic spending 
commitments that need to be honoured within the CSB and reflected in how it is set 

Page 3



 

 

 The Education Services Grant will cease at the end of August 2017 to coincide with 
the expectation that LAs will step back by then from  running local school improvement 

 DfE is looking at whether other statutory duties can be removed from LAs to help save 
more money. 

 
High Needs Funding arrangements 
 

 There is a need to build on the recent changes brought in by the Children and Families 
Act 2014 and the introduction of the High Needs Funding Block which has 
responsibilities for SEN / disabilities from birth to the age of 25. 

 Formulaic approach to allocate High Needs funding to local authorities in future 

 Better communication about how the system is expected to work 

 Better decision-making by frontline professionals, both in local authorities and in 
schools / colleges 

 Growing mismatch between the current high needs allocation to LAs and their need to 
spend reinforces the case for change 

 The majority of high needs funding will continue to be distributed to local authorities  

 The national high needs formula will use proxy measures to allocate funds to LAs 

 Its factors are proposed to be low attainment, health / disability, deprivation, child 
population and a basic pupil / student entitlement factor 

 There will be an adjustment made to reflect whether the authority is a net importer or 
net exporter of special school children 

 There will be an allowance for Alternative Provisions based upon overall pupil 
population and deprivation levels 

 Hospital education will continue to be funded on current spending levels but EFA may 
use in-patient data in future to inform the funding distribution 

 There will be an area cost adjustment to match the approach taken in the schools NFF 

 There will be reference back to the current overall level of spend and a phased 
transition to the new high needs arrangements over at least a five-year period 

 Capital funding is available to develop new specialist provision or expand existing 
provisions where there is a demonstrable need 

 LAs encouraged to work collaboratively in regional or sub-regional groups to 
commission provision 

 Schools and colleges encouraged to be more inclusive for pupils / students with SEN 

 Support to all provisions to reduce some of their costs 

 No changes to the way mainstream schools are funded for SEN / disability – still 
responsible for up to the first £6,000 per annum of additional support costs 

 Special school places still funded at £10,000 per place per annum  

 Local authorities still to allocate top-up for mainstream and special schools as 
appropriate 

 Local authorities will no longer have to declare a Notional SEN budget – schools will 
receive guidance on how to determine what they should be spending on SEN issues 

 Specialist Provisions will be funded at £6,000 per place (rather than £10,000) but 
pupils in the provision will also be funded via the main schools national formula. 

 Further guidance to be issued on identifying and funding SEN disproportionality to 
support those schools that are particularly inclusive or have a high proportion of SEN 
high needs pupils 

 EFA consulting on whether to fund independent special schools directly at £10,000 per 
place with LAs then supplying the top-up elements – LAs are currently responsible for 
both elements from their high needs block 

Page 4



 

 

 Further consultation later in the year on how to improve SEN support to Early Years 
settings 

 Looking at ways that the Place funding approach could be extended to post-16 
providers. Concept of special unit / resourced provision to be extended to FE and 
sixth form colleges 

 
6. Any other business 
 
No other business was raised. 
 
Date and time of next meeting  
  
Friday 24th June 2016 Tolson Museum 10.00 – 11.00am 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



ACTIVITY BUDGET
PROJEC-

TION

OVER (+) 

UNDER (-) 

SPEND

Projection 

as % 

Budget

2014/15 

Out-turn

£000 £000 £000 £000

LEARNING

Transformation & Quality Improvement 34.00 34.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Primary & Secondary Commissioning Fund 450.30 450.30 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Early Years - Single Funding Formula 1200.03 717.75 -482.29 -40.19 -97.00

Learning - 2 year old funding 8212.30 5441.13 -2771.17 -33.74 -3742.30

PVI Formula Funding 9645.52 9713.76 68.24 0.71 0.00

Early Years Quality Impr/Sufficiency 585.00 585.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Booksplus & Community Libraries 82.00 82.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Swimming Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -18.10

Head Teacher Wellbeing 6.00 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

International New Arrivals 80.89 38.85 -42.04 -51.97 -55.90

Psychology (Portex & ICAN) 179.30 173.24 -6.06 -3.38 0.00

Specialist Provision Co-ordination 391.10 391.10 0.00 0.00 7.60

BESD Partnerships & Exclusions 944.36 724.26 -220.10 -23.31 -154.20

FE High Needs Allocation 993.88 744.60 -249.28 0.00 -189.10

Educ of LAC 65.10 65.10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Independent School Fees 2679.50 2993.64 314.14 11.72 -166.50

Resources for Statements in Mainstream (OLA'S) 260.00 201.39 -58.61 -22.54 -123.40

SEN Assessment & Commissioning 165.00 165.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Schools Organisation & Planning 131.00 131.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

School Admissions 389.00 389.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

FSM Admin 55.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SLA's 123.00 75.22 -47.78 -38.84 0.00

SUPPORT & PROTECTION

Lifting & Handling Adviser 23.00 23.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Safeguarding Board 48.40 48.40 0.00 0.00 0.00

SCHOOL BUDGETS

ISB 234938.43 234938.43 0.00 0.00 0.00

ISSB 14087.34 14087.34 0.00 0.00 0.00

Teachers Pay Grant 419.00 316.56 -102.44 -24.45 -60.00

6th Form Grant -687.10 -687.10 0.00 0.00 0.00

LMS Contingency 5103.33 2588.13 -2515.20 -49.29 -3308.60

SEN Contingency 990.24 805.89 -184.35 -18.62 233.80

Sickness Absence Scheme Cover 404.10 317.24 -86.86 -21.49 -404.10

Maternity Leave 807.02 1074.83 267.81 33.18 193.40

Union Duties 198.83 248.82 49.99 25.14 26.77

Public Duties 9.40 3.75 -5.66 -60.16 -1.57

Schools Forum 31.00 17.16 -13.84 -44.64 -14.20

School Reorganisations 292.00 292.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Protection of Employees 0.00 -11.77 -11.77 0.00 -238.30

Premature Retirements 180.40 180.40 0.00 0.00 0.00

PPP2 376.30 213.20 -163.10 -43.34 -100.30

Copyright Licences 180.00 287.43 107.43 59.68 4.60

Carbon Reduction Commitment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -52.10

DSG SLA (FINANCE/HR/CATERING 307.50 283.02 -24.48 -7.96 0.00

Overall Net Expenditure 284,381.5 278,204.1 -6,177.42 -2.17 -8,259.5

KIRKLEES METROPOLITAN COUNCIL     -    CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SERVICE

OUT-TURN 2015-16

OUT-TURN 2015-16

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



2015/16: DSG ROLL-OVER - SCHOOL'S FORUM DECISION REQUIRED

BUDGET OVERSPENDS £000

PVI 3&4 Year Olds -                   O/spend offset v Early Yrs SFF underspend below

Independent School Fees 314,140.00     

Maternity 267,810.00     

Union Duties 49,990.00       

Copyright Licences 107,430.00     

TOTAL OVERSPENDS 739,370.00     

BUDGET UNDERSPENDS NOT REQURED

SLA'S 47,778.00       

International new Arrivals 42,042.00       

Portex/ICAN 6,060.00          

Teacher Pay Grant 102,436.00     

Public Duties 5,660.00          

Resources for statements in mainstream 58,610.00       

School Forum 13,840.00       

Protection of Employees 11,772.00       

PPP2 163,100.00     

Central SLA Budgets 24,477.00       

TOTAL UNDERSPENDS NOT REQUIRED 475,775.00     

SHORTFALL TO COVER OVERPSENDS 263,595.00     

BUDGET ROLL-OVER REQUESTS

Early Years SFF 414,050.00     £68,245 PVI o/spend offset v this. 

2 year Old Funding 2,771,170.00  

BESD & Exclusions 220,100.00     

FE High Needs Allocation 249,280.00     Required to pay 16/17 invoice for which no accrual was completed.

SEN Contingency 184,350.00     

LMS Contingency 2,515,200.00  

Sickness Absence Insurance Scheme 86,860.00       To be retained in the scheme. (NB: 14/15 underpsend £404,100)

TOTAL ROLL OVER BUDGET REQUESTS 6,441,010.00  

TOTAL YEAR END BALANCE 6,177,415.00  

Page 8


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Forum meeting held on 11th March 2016
	5 DSG 2015/16 budget rollover proposals

